
    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 7, 2015 Page 1 of 3 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

               6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

            Tuesday, July 7, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:00 p.m.  

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema,. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused: None  

  Staff present:              J. Jocks, Legal Counsel 

                                       N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

                     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

Clerk, Dye, requested to add to New Business #7 Clerk’s update. 

 

Motion by White, seconded by LaPointe to approve the agenda with the addition of Clerk’s update under 

New Business #7. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

C.       INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

 D.        CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for     

      one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the a 

      agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report  

b. UClerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report  and Balance Sheet  

c. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 06/08/15 

d. Parks and Maintenance Report – Henkel 

             2.         APPROVAL:  

                          a.          Township Board Special Budget work session 05/19/15 

                                       Townsho[ Board Special Parks work session 06/11/15 

                                       Regular meeting minutes of  06/02/15  

  b.         Accounts Payable Prepaid of $13,955.34 and Current to be approved of 

             $117,600.97 (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

             Dye asked to remove the Current bills to be paid, LaPointe asked for the Planning Commission minutes of 6/8/15 

             to be pulled, Jenema requested the Treasurer’s report and Clerk’s balance sheet removed. 

 

             Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott to approve the consent calendar with the removal of the Current 

             bills, Planning Commission minutes of 6/8/15 and the Treasurer’s report. Motion carried by unanimous 

             roll call vote. 

 

             Dye  had additional invoices of $37,476.87 to add to the Current bills to be paid of $117,600.97 bringing the total 

             to $155,077.84. 

 

             Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott to approve the Current bills of $155,077.84. Motion carried by 

             unanimous roll call vote. 

 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 7, 2015 Page 2 of 3 
 

 

             LaPointe commented on the recent article in the Detroit News “Rancor welcomes Meijer to Acme Township”. 

             He said it makes no mention of Acmes attributes but focus almost exclusively instead on the ghosts of the past. 

             No mention of the unique features we have such as Grand Traverse Resort with three championship golf courses,  

 Flint fields, Williamsburg Dinner Theater and the very high end and successful Traverse Bay RV Park  

             and there are others. The fact that Acme has an Agricultural District that encompass over a third of the entire 

              Township  with over 900 acres and counting of Farmland that will remain Farmland forever thanks to Acme’s 20 

              year commitment to a property tax millage that funds the farmland preservation program. 

 LaPointe commented that it goes without saying that any citizen has the right to  express their opinion regardless 

 if it is pro or con. LaPointe finds himself growing weary with the same rhetoric. The one thing the Detroit News 

 got right was the title of the article “Rancor welcomes Meijer to Acme Township”.             

 

Trustee, Aukerman, stated that she agrees with La Pointe’s points. This Board has done many good things, the 

Master Plan that has been very carefully thought out. With the five year Parks & Recreation plan that is now in 

place we are able to apply for different grants. Aukerman believes this Board has shown a vision and direction. 

 

              Motion by LaPointe, seconded by White to approve the Planning Commission minutes of 6/8/15 as 

              presented.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote.  

 

              Jenema commented that with the new BS&A software some of the reports look a little different. And will 

              continue to as we work to modify things. She is keeping the same format for the Treasurer’s report for 

              reference. Jenema pointed out to the Board the cash summary by Banks match the Balance sheet. Jenema said 

              that when you look at the Treasurer’s report they are not the same.  She pointed out that not all of the checks had 

              cleared.  Discussion followed. 

               

              Motion by Jenema, seconded by Scott to approve the Treasurer’s report and Balance sheet as presented.  

              Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None 

              

G. REPORTS: Received and filed 

1. Shheriff’s Report – Deputy: Ken Chubb 

2. County Commissioner’s Report – Crawford 

3.          Road commission report – McKellar 

LaFranier Road in Garfield Township is now open.  McKellar talked about what’s the status of the    

various County Drains which are being looked at to be established in other Townships. 

 

H. CORRESPONDENCE:  

             Zollinger received an email from the Traverse City Boom Boom Club thanking the Township for our contribution 

             towards the 4th of July fireworks. A letter was sent to New Hope Church for the volunteers who picked up brush 

             in  Sayler Park in May, and also a team of 3rd, 4th and 5th graders from Bertha Vos that picked up brush in the 

             Deepwater Natural Area. 

  

I.           PUBLIC HEARING: None 

   

J. NEW BUSINESS: 

             1.       RFP Legal Services – Supervisor 

                       Board reviewed the RFP.  A list of firms that the Township will be sending the RFP to was included. 

                       Zollinger would like to add  Brandt, Pezzetti, Vermetten, Popovits, P.C..  The Board also requested that an 

                       ad be  placed in the Record Eagle. 

 

             2.       FOIA 2015 Cost updates based on new budget – Clerk 

 

                       Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott to approve Resolution R-2015-29 adopting amended fees and 

                       Costs for Freedom of Information Act.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 



    

Acme Township Board of Trustees July 7, 2015 Page 3 of 3 
 

             3.       Acme Sewer update East Bay bypass, 2016 engineer 2007 build – Supervisor 

                       Zollinger reviewed his memo regarding the East Bay bypass. 

 

             4.       Resolution to move money from 101 committed funds for BS&A to 101-101-804-000 

 

                       Motion by Scott, seconded by Dye to approve Resolution R-2015-30 moving funds  for the new BS&A 

                       Software. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

             5.       County GIS support for Assessing New Ortho Imagery – Jenema 

                        Jenema presented a proposed Grand Traverse County aerial imagery procurement project financial 

                        Partnership. 

 

                       Motion by LaPointe, supported by Scott, to show a commitment for this project. Motion carried by 

                       unanimous roll call vote. 

 

             6.        TC RV park approval of new roads names – Supervisor 

                        Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Dye to approve the three new road names for the TC RV park. 

                        Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

             7.        Clerk’s update – Clerk 

                        Clerk’s office update attached to the minutes 

                   

K.        OLD BUSINESS: 

           1.         US 31 Shave and Pave, Curb cut approval of Acme Sewer/Manhole repairs – Supervisor 

                         MDOT will be resurfacing about 3.5 miles of US-31  between Holiday Road and the Grand Traverse 

                         Resort (Brackett Rd) beginning after Labor Day and be completed by November. 

             2.         MDNR grant resolution new grant/Sayler park boat launch 

                         Dicussion followed 

   

                         Motion by Aukerman, seconded by Scott to approve Resolution R-2015-31 accepting the terms of 

                         the Agreement as received from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and granting 

                         Zollinger to sign the Waterways Grant Agreement. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

                         Zollinger also provided a draft Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Waterways Project. This is 

                         an Agreement between Acme Township and Gosling Czubak Engineering Services, Inc. Discussion  

                         Followed with questions and concerns regarding the agreement.  Zollinger will make the corrections and 

                         forward to  Jocks to review. 

  

 Motion by Scott, seconded by LaPointe to make the corrections as noted with all work by Gosling  

Czubak not to exceed $39,870.00 with Contract Review by Jocks before signature. Motion Passed 

on a unanimous roll call vote. 

             3.         Zoning  Administrator – Jenema 

                         Jenema stated that Shawn Winter began on Monday, July 6th. We are looking forward to working with 

                         him. 

 

             Jocks commented that Ruth Ann Liebziet, legal assistant, retired on July 2, 2015, after 28 years with our firm. 

             We couldn’t have gotten where we are today without her help. We wish her all the best on her retirement. 

                                                          

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

             T. Phillips, 2986 Wild Juniper Trail, asked if the East Bay force main is under the newly reconstructed US 31. 

             Zollinger commented it was on the edge to the south of the tree lawn. He also asked how many FOIA requests we 

             get in a year. Dye commented about a dozen.  Phillips also commented on La Pointe’s comments on the recent 

             Detroit News article ,and its part of the freedom we have to express our opinions.   

                                                  

           Adjourned at 9:05 pm        

  





If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

 
              ACME TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

          ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

                6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

               Tuesday, July 7, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

 
UGENERAL TOWNSHIP MEETING POLICIES 

A.       All cell phones shall be switched to silent mode or turned off. 

B.       Any person may make a video, audio or other record of this meeting. Standing equipment, 

             records, or portable microphones must be located so as not to block audience view. 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ROLL CALL  

     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Public Comment periods are provided at the beginning and end of each meeting agenda. Members of the public 

may address the Board regarding any subject of community interest during these periods. Comment during 

other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s discretion.  

 

 B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

 C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

 

 D. CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items 

together for one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for 

discussion later in the agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report  

b. UClerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report and Balance Sheet  

c. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

1. Planning Commission 06/08/15 

d. Metro Fire newsletter 

e. North Flight report 

f. VGT Final Stormwater Agreement 

g. Parks and Maintenance Report – Henkel 

             2.         APPROVAL:  

                          a.          Township Board Special Budget work session 05/19/15 

                                       Township Board Special Parks work session 06/11/15 

                                       Regular meeting minutes of  06/02/15  

  b.         Accounts Payable Prepaid of $13,955.34 and Current to be approved of 

             $117,600.97 (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 1.        

2.        

3.        

 

F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: 

 

G. REPORTS: 

1. Shheriff’s Report– Deputy: Ken Chubb 

2. County Commissioner’s Report-Carol Crawford 

3.  Road commission report-Marc McKellar 



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

 

 

H. CORRESPONDENCE: 

              

I.           PUBLIC HEARING:  

 

J. NEW BUSINESS: 

             1. RFP Legal Services-Supervisor 

 2. FOIA 2015 Cost up dates based on new budget-Clerk 

 3. Acme Sewer Up date East Bay by pass, 2016 engineer 2007 build-Supervisor 

 4. Resolution to move Money from 101 Committed funds for BS&A to 101-101-804-000 

 5. County GIS support for Assessing New Ortho Imagery-Jenema 

 6. TC RV park Approval of new road names-Supervisor 

  

K.         OLD BUSINESS: 

           1. US31 Shave and Pave, Curb cut removal Acme Sewer/ Manhole Repairs-Supervisor  

 2. MDNR Grant resolution new grant.-Sayler park Boat Launch. 

             3.          Zoning Administrator Update – Jenema 

              
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 









































































































 Trip List - Dispatch (Short) 
 Company IS NORTH FLIGHT INC; AND Trip Date IS BETWEEN 05/01/2015 AND 05/31/2015; AND Response Zone IS ACME TWSP-28; AND No Group; AND No Group; AND Yes 

 
Run #  or 

Trip # TripDate Veh/Unit Time Call Type Customer Name PickUp Location DropOff Location 
 

* Shaded records indicate that trip has been cancelled RescueNet™ Reporting 
 
E:\REPORTS32\GENERAL\TRIP RELATED\LISTS\DSTSHORT.RPT 
Printed on 6/23/2015,  2:33:56PM  Page 1 
 

NORTH FLIGHT INC 
 
Dispatched  
 
   
 7138 5/1/2015 NF 10: NF  22:56:25 Prehospital  10106 US 31 N  MUNSON CADILLAC HOSP ER 

 10 

 Crew: OSBURN, RICK    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7199 5/3/2015 NF 8: NF 8 10:01:34 Prehospital  HOPE VILLAGE LOBBY MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: WIGGINS, AMY    WINKLER, AMANDA   <None>                

   
 7210 5/3/2015 NF 10: NF  15:02:27 Prehospital  5200 MUNSON AVE CRESTWOOD MOTEL RM 9 

 10 

 Crew: GRATTOPP, DAVE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7287 5/4/2015 NF 10: NF  13:54:39 Community Benefit FIRE, STANDBY2345 MUNSON AVE  

 10 

 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7293 5/4/2015 NF 10: NF  16:35:28 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL HOPE VILLAGE  

 10 

 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7307 5/4/2015 NF 8: NF 8 23:16:28 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL 5719 RIDGE RD  

 Crew: MERRILL, LENNY    COURSON, MIKE   <None>                

   
 7342 5/5/2015 NF 10: NF  15:17:20 Community Benefit SERVICE, OTHERHOPE VILLAGE  

 10 

 Crew: OSBURN, RICK    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7362 5/6/2015 NF 17: NF  01:00:57 Prehospital  4075 SHERWOOD FOREST DR  MUNSON CADILLAC HOSP ER 

 17 

 Crew: SALYER, JOSH    THOMPSON, KELSEY   <None>                

   
 7506 5/9/2015 NF 8: NF 8 06:00:48 Prehospital <Unknown> 3435 HOLIDAY RD  

 Crew: DYMORA, DANIELLE    TATE, ROSE   <None>                

   
 7512 5/9/2015 NF 4: NF 4 08:29:40 Prehospital  3597 BUNKER HILL RD ACE HARDWARE 

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7545 5/9/2015 NF 4: NF 4 19:36:23 Prehospital  2854 HOLIDAY PINES RD  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    METRO, GT   <None>                

   



 Trip List - Dispatch (Short) 
 Company IS NORTH FLIGHT INC; AND Trip Date IS BETWEEN 05/01/2015 AND 05/31/2015; AND Response Zone IS ACME TWSP-28; AND No Group; AND No Group; AND Yes 

 
Run #  or 

Trip # TripDate Veh/Unit Time Call Type Customer Name PickUp Location DropOff Location 
 

* Shaded records indicate that trip has been cancelled RescueNet™ Reporting 
 
E:\REPORTS32\GENERAL\TRIP RELATED\LISTS\DSTSHORT.RPT 
Printed on 6/23/2015,  2:33:56PM  Page 1 
 

 7564 5/10/2015 NF 4: NF 4 10:24:23 Prehospital  4375 FIVE MILE RD  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7572 5/10/2015 NF 4: NF 4 12:48:06 Prehospital S 4693 WESTRIDGE DR  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7586 5/10/2015 NF 4: NF 4 20:58:31 Prehospital  6181 US 31 N  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7593 5/11/2015 NF 8: NF 8 02:30:40 Prehospital  HOPE VILLAGE  

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    BIRGY, KAYLIE   <None>                

   
 7714 5/12/2015 NF 4: NF 4 13:48:22 Prehospital  10106 US 31 NORTH SHORELINE FRUIT MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 

NORTH FLIGHT INC (cont.) 
 
Dispatched  (cont.) 
 
 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7813 5/14/2015 NF 4: NF 4 21:31:45 Prehospital  4013 MAPLEWOOD LN  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OSBURN, RICK    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7817 5/15/2015 NF 17: NF  02:56:20 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL HOPE VILLAGE  

 17 

 Crew: PATTON, DANIEL    COURSON, MIKE   <None>                

   
 7837 5/15/2015 NF 4: NF 4 13:12:31 Prehospital  3749 HOLIDAY VILLAGE RD  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: GRATTOPP, DAVE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7848 5/15/2015 NF 4: NF 4 18:59:46 Prehospital  4259 HOLIDAY RD  

 Crew: GRATTOPP, DAVE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7849 5/15/2015 NF 17: NF  18:59:46 Prehospital  4263 HOLIDAY RD  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 17 

 Crew: MERRILL, LENNY    COURSON, MIKE   <None>                

   
 7874 5/16/2015 NF 4: NF 4 10:23:36 Prehospital  GRAND TRAVERSE RESORT  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OSBURN, RICK    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 7969 5/18/2015 NF 4: NF 4 12:47:23 Prehospital  4070 PARK LN  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OSBURN, RICK    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8026 5/19/2015 NF 4: NF 4 12:23:56 Prehospital  4185 WOLVERINE DRIVE  



 Trip List - Dispatch (Short) 
 Company IS NORTH FLIGHT INC; AND Trip Date IS BETWEEN 05/01/2015 AND 05/31/2015; AND Response Zone IS ACME TWSP-28; AND No Group; AND No Group; AND Yes 

 
Run #  or 

Trip # TripDate Veh/Unit Time Call Type Customer Name PickUp Location DropOff Location 
 

* Shaded records indicate that trip has been cancelled RescueNet™ Reporting 
 
E:\REPORTS32\GENERAL\TRIP RELATED\LISTS\DSTSHORT.RPT 
Printed on 6/23/2015,  2:33:56PM  Page 1 
 

 Crew: GRATTOPP, DAVE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8055 5/19/2015 NF 4: NF 4 20:43:45 Prehospital  5520 US 31 N  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: GRATTOPP, DAVE    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8060 5/20/2015 NF 17: NF  05:57:02 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL HOPE VILLAGE 1109 

 17 

 Crew: SALYER, JOSH    COURSON, MIKE   <None>                

   
 8119 5/21/2015 NF 4: NF 4 11:50:32 Prehospital  3878 M 72  E GOODWILL STORE MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8122 5/21/2015 NF 8: NF 8 12:48:10 Prehospital  HOPE VILLAGE  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: BOTTOMLEY, LOTTIE    GREZESZAK, PAULA   <None>                

   
 8125 5/21/2015 NF 4: NF 4 15:24:43 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL 2831 HOLIDAY PINES RD  

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8128 5/21/2015 NF 5: NF 5 16:04:13 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL FIVE MILE & US 31 N  

 Crew: BIRGY, KAYLIE    PATTON, DANIEL   <None>                

   
 8132 5/21/2015 NF 4: NF 4 17:22:27 Prehospital  10106 US-31N  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8147 5/22/2015 NF 8: NF 8 00:23:39 Prehospital  7775 SAYLER RD  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: ALLARD, ROBERT    METRO, GT   <None>                

 

NORTH FLIGHT INC (cont.) 
 
Dispatched  (cont.) 
 
   
 8152 5/22/2015 NF 8: NF 8 06:09:01 Prehospital  3749 PLEASANT RIDGE DRIVE  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: ALLARD, ROBERT    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8169 5/22/2015 NF 8: NF 8 11:17:28 Prehospital  KIRKLAND AND US 31 PARK ACROSS FROM BAYVIEW MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: FRIEND, JEFF    MERRILL, ELIZABETH   <None>                

   
 8192 5/22/2015 NF 4: NF 4 21:32:09 Prehospital  GRAND TRAVERSE RESORT 16 FLOOR MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: OSBURN, RICK    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8266 5/24/2015 NF 4: NF 4 16:12:45 Prehospital  GRAND TRAVERSE RESORT governers hall MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: GRATTOPP, DAVE    METRO, GT   <None>                



 Trip List - Dispatch (Short) 
 Company IS NORTH FLIGHT INC; AND Trip Date IS BETWEEN 05/01/2015 AND 05/31/2015; AND Response Zone IS ACME TWSP-28; AND No Group; AND No Group; AND Yes 

 
Run #  or 

Trip # TripDate Veh/Unit Time Call Type Customer Name PickUp Location DropOff Location 
 

* Shaded records indicate that trip has been cancelled RescueNet™ Reporting 
 
E:\REPORTS32\GENERAL\TRIP RELATED\LISTS\DSTSHORT.RPT 
Printed on 6/23/2015,  2:33:56PM  Page 1 
 

   
 8596 5/28/2015 NF 4: NF 4 07:26:34 Prehospital  4264 W TIMBERWOOD DR  MUNSON MEDICAL CENTER ER 

 Crew: SOPHA, JASON    METRO, GT   <None>                

   
 8705 5/29/2015 NF 4: NF 4 18:13:37 Prehospital CANCEL, PREHOSPITAL 7930 PEACEFULL VALLEY RD  

 Crew: OLSON, TERRIE    METRO, GT   <None>                
 

Total Calls Dispatched: 38 Total Transports: 23 
 
 
Total Calls for NORTH FLIGHT INC: 38 Total Transports: 23 

 

 









 
 
 
 

To: Acme Township Board of Trustees 
 
From: Tom Henkel, Facilities & Parks Manager 
 
Date: 6/29/2015 
 
Re: Monthly Update June 2015 
 

 
The Following is a summary of key activities underway. 
 

Parks: 
Prepping Swim areas beaches for grooming, grooming should follow.  
New ADA signage at Bayside Park parking lot. 
Mowing every other week.  
Tree work completed for now. 
Resident’s from the condos next to Bayside were allowed to park in the 
south end of the park for a day, on the lawn while their parking lot was seal 
coated. 
Bunker Hill temporary parking lot expansion turned over to township 
engineers for certified drawings due to permitting requirements.  
New trash cans for Shoreline Park should be distributed. 
Started cutting autumn olive in front of YCNA US31n Parking lot, will finish 
as time permits. 
Swim area buoys will be deployed as time and weather permits. 
No Lifeguard/No glass on Beach signs for the new part of the Shoreline 
Park are on hand. Soon as I can construct the posts they will go in. 
Tree and shrub pruning ongoing at parks, hence brush piles which will be 
removed.     
  
 
Cemeteries: 



Yuba Cemetery fence complete. 
Mowing every other week. 
Tree work completed in Acme Cemetery. 
3 burials in June in Acme Cemetery. 
Pulled out old shrubs at Yuba Cemetery per request. Will seed area. 
Tree and shrub pruning ongoing in both cemeteries, hence the brush piles 
which will be removed soon. 
 
 
 
Buildings/Grounds: 
Waiting for bid on garage door for Bayside shed building. 
Only one bid received on painting the exterior of the Fire station/Town hall. 
One coat prep and caulk. Doors and jambs $11000.00 
ASAP new Dumpster screens will be constructed at the Hall and Bayside 
Park. The New dumpsters do not fit the old ones, plus the old ones are past 
their prime for sure.  
 
 
Equipment/Fixtures: 
Researching styles for as needed replacements for park restrooms.  
 
Surface Water Quality Testing: 
Completed for June. 
 
Beach Water Quality Testing: 
Commenced 3rd week of June. 
 
Invasive Species: 
Nothing to report. 
 
Planning: 
Attended Northwest Water Safety Network Meeting. Working on a 
numbering system for beach stations. Would like to see it become regional. 
This would give emergency services a point to go to when needed.  
 
General Activities: 
I think I’m going to wait until after July dry dormant season (if we have one) 
to fertilize the unirrigated lawns. 



Most of the supply’s for cleaning and restrooms including trash bags, for 
the year are on hand.    
  

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees May 19, 2015 Page 1 of 2 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

BUDGET WORK SESSION 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

               6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

            Tuesday, May 19, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:01 p.m. 

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused:     None  

  Staff present:              N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

                     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT:  

D. Dunville, 3771 Crest Haven Lane, encouraged the Board to think about all the things, Henkel, Parks & Rec 

               Manager, does for the Township in the course of day as the Board goes into discussion about the 2015/16 

               Budget. 

 

B.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

Motion by LaPointe, seconded by White, to approve the agenda as presented. Motion carried by 

unanimous vote. 

 

            

C.   INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

               

  D.    NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Continuation of the 2015/16 Budget work session 
 

             Zollinger stated that we are here tonight to look at 101 accounts.  Zollinger had an update on the          
Clerk’s department (Page 6/Line 23).  The hours for the deputy clerk will be reduced to 22 hrs from 26 
hours. 

 
             Scott raised the question of unemployment expense for the part time parks workers. Zollinger had not 

yet research the rule but Treasurer Jenema did on line and said we were ok . 
 
             Zollinger recused himself while the Board discussed the Supervisor’s wages.  Trustee, White, led the 
             discussion.  LaPointe referred to the survey that the Salary review committee had provided earlier. It 
             was recommended the Supervisor wages be moved to $40,000.  
             LaPointe reviewed the statutory duties of the Supervisor and what Zollinger does above and beyond 
             those duties.  Board also discussed stipends regarding health insurance. It was agreed that a health   

Insurance stipend was offered it needed to be offered to all employees, and should be paid in their 
normal pay not at one time. The recommended amount was $4,000 if Township insurance is not taken, 
and that the supervisor would prepare a resolution to cover that for our public hearing meeting on  the 
Budget. It also was recommended a resolution be prepared for work above statutory duties be available 
for Budget hearing. This stipend would show up under the Trustees budget line. 

                    
             There was a long discussion on Parks Maintenance Supervisor, duties and how Acme Township compared to 
             other Townships as done by the wage committee. 
             
             Motion by Scott to “Red Line” wages of the Parks Maintenance Supervisor at $47,882.00. A Personnel 
             Committee will be re-established to reset the duties and responsibilities of the Parks Maintenance 
             Supervisor.  Seconded by White.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees May 19, 2015 Page 2 of 2 
 

             
 
            Motion by Jenema, seconded by White, to have the Supervisor, Clerk and one Trustee to reestablish 
            the Personnel committee Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
            Scott asked about the job description  and expections for the Parks Maintenance Supervisor. LaPointe and  
            Jenema will “brainstorm” the job description and how to administrant. Personnel committee will review and return 
            for Board approval. 
 
 No Public comments: 
 

Supervisor Zollinger commented that we need to have a Study Session to discuss strategic directions for 

the Township Parks. We will pick a date at the June 2nd Board meeting. 
  
 
 
                 

             Adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 

                         

              

 

              

              

 

 

  



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 11, 2015 Page 1 of 2 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
 WORK SESSION ON PARKS 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 
               6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 
            Thursday, June 11, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:00 p.m. 
 
  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema, G. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 
  Members excused:     None  
  Staff present:              N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 
                     
A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT:  

C.Abernethy, 4312 Westridge Dr, read a prepared statement into the record and are attached to the minutes. 
 
P. Salathiel, 4888 Five Mile Rd, expressed her concerns with not having pedestrian crossings into our parks, she 
asked if the Township would be resubmitting for the Michigan Natural Resources Trust fund grant that we did 
not get earlier,  
 

B.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 
Motion by White, seconded by Scott, to approve the agenda as presented. Motion carried by unanimous 
vote. 

            
C.   INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

             
D.  CORRESPONDENCE: 
            1.    E-mail dated 06/11/15 from John Zaloudek, 10351 Kay Ray Road, regarding the possible acquisition 
                   of the campground immediately to the east and adjacent to Sayler Park 

 
  E.        NEW BUSINESS: 

1.     Decision on Zoning Administrator position 
        Jenema  read a prepared statement into record and are attached to the minutes. 
 
        Motion by Scott, seconded by LaPointe to offer the position of Zoning Administrator as 
        presented to Shawn Winter, with two paid work days in September while a presenter at the 
        International Bicycle Urbanism Symposium in Richmond, Virginia. Motion carried by 
        unanimous roll call vote. 
 
        Matt McDonough and Mike Okma from the Grand Traverse Regional Land Conservancy,  
        were present to talk about the possible acquisition of the campground adjacent to Saylor Park. He 
        gave a history of the property ownership which is now in the hands of Chemical Bank. McDonough 
        has spoken  to the Realtor. The property is currently listed for $199,000.00 with a tax assessment 
        of  $136,000.00. This is a foreclosure being held by Chemical Bank. There is a balance owing of 
        $65,000.00. McDonough has spoken with the Realtor and Chemical Bank regarding a community 
        partnership with the Township to purchase the property for $65,000.00. Discussion still ongoing. 
        McDonough would like to know the level of interest from the Board. Also what would be the 
        Township’s intention for the property. Discussion followed. 
 

                                      
2.     Parks & Recreation Work session 

                      Marcie Timmins, Chair of the Parks Advisory, read into record a statement which is also attached to 
                      the minutes. 
 
 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 11, 2015 Page 2 of 2 
 

                     Trustee, Aukerman gave an update on the funding for the Sayler Board launch. 
 
 
 
                      Motion by Scott, to commit $122,190.00 to the Sayler boat launch and additional up to $75,000.00 for 
                      matching grants on Parks improvements 
 
                      Discussion followed 
  
                      K. Guy, 7894 Peaceful Valley Road, stated she was thrilled to be having this study session tonight. She 
                      commented that there were many people who are present tonight and not present who worked hard to  
                      create a different way of life in Acme. Guy encouraged an implementation team that would bring the best 
                      minds and people together to create a shoreline.  
 
         Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
                      
                     Motion by Scott to have a representative of the Board, Conservancy, Parks Advisory and Henkel 
                     form a committee to look at the long term goals for the Parks and return to the Board with the 
                     recommendations.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
                     LaPointe will represent the Board. 
                                           
                     Motion by LaPointe to contract with Gosling Czubak to write a grant to Fishery Trust for the Fall 
                     deadline. Seconded by Aukerman. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
 
                Zollinger commented that Park Supervisor, Henkel, had recently finished installing the fence at Yuba 
                  Cemetary removing the brush pile from the Yuba Natural Area, removal of dead trees from Bayside Park. 
                  Henkel stated that he mows/trims on a two week rotation. 
 
 
 
                 Adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
                         
              
 
              
              
 
 
  













  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 2, 2015 Page 1 of 4 
 

     ACME TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

               6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

            Tuesday, June 2, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AT 7:00 p.m.  

 

  Members present: J. Aukerman, C. Dye, A. Jenema,. LaPointe, P. Scott, D. White, J. Zollinger 

  Members excused: None  

  Staff present:              J. Jocks, Legal Counsel 

                                       N. Edwardson, Recording Secretary 

                     

A.  LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 
B. Kelley, 4893 Ridge Crest Rd, thanked the Salary review committee for their work. Kelley commented 

that he would like to see a executive summary of our Township along with the Budget. 

 

T. Phillips, 2986 Wild Juniper Trail, commented that some attachments were missing for a resolution that 

was in the packet.  Zollinger said that the information came in late today and was on the table. 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

Jenema asked to add a presentation from one of the Zoning Administrator applicants, Zollinger would  

like to add a SAD Resolution under New Business 4c. 

 

Motion by White, seconded by Jenema to approve the agenda as presented with the two additions. Motion 

carried by unanimous vote.  

              

Shawn Winter, an applicant for the Zoning Administrator position, was present to give a  synopsis of his 

background, work history for the Board. 

 

C.       INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

 D.        CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together for     

      one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for discussion later in the a 

      agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

1. RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a. Treasurer’s Report  

b. UClerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report  and Balance Sheet  

c. Draft Unapproved Meeting Minutes: 

a. Planning Commission 05/11/15 

d. Parks and Maintenance Report – Henkel 

             2.         APPROVAL:  

                          a.          Township Board Special Budget work session 04/30/15 

                                       Regular meeting minutes of  05/12/15  

  b.         Accounts Payable Prepaid of $30,240.40 and Current to be approved of 

             $70,505.35 (Recommend approval: Cathy Dye, Clerk) 

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

             Jenema asked for the Treasurer’s report to be removed., 

 

             Motion by Jenema, seconded by White, to approve the Consent Calendar as presented with the 

             removal of the Treasurer’s report. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 2, 2015 Page 2 of 4 
 

 

              Jenema gave a more detail summary of the correlation between the Clerk’s and Treasurer’s reports. 

 

              Motion by Dye, seconded by LaPointe, to approve the Treasurer’s report as presented.  Motion 

              carried by unanimous vote. 

                                                       

F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/DISCUSSIONS: None 

              

G. REPORTS: Received and filed 

1. Shheriff’s Report – Deputy: Ken Chubb 

2. County Commissioner’s Report - Crawford 

 

H. CORRESPONDENCE:  

             1.       Email dated 06/01/15 detailing a meeting about Climate Change in the Grand Traverse Region, 

                       Wednesday, June 17, 2015, at the Great Wolf Lodge. 

              

I           PUBLIC HEARING:  

   Acme township 2015/2016  Budget Hearing 

   Budget Resolutions to be approved 

1. Resolution R-2015-16 Stipends Health Insurance 

 

Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott, to approve Resolution R-2015-16 in Support of Stipends for 

Township employees who qualify for health insurance.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

2.  Resolution Resolution R-2015-17 Elected Officals Stipends for extra duties performed 

 

                     Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Scott to approve Resolution R-2015-17 in Support of Stipends for 

                     Elected Officals for extra duties performed above Statuary duties with a dollar value along with 

                     the percentage added to the resolution. Motion carried by a roll call vote of  5 (Aukerman, Jenema, 

                     LaPointe, Scott, White) in favor, 1 opposing (Dye) and 1 Abstaining (Zollinger) 

 

3.   Resolution R-2015-18 Supervisor’s Salary 

                      Zollinger recused himself and turned the gravel over to the Trustee, White. 

                                  

Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Jenema to pass Resolution # 2015-18 that the salary of the office of         

Supervisor shall be $37,000. Motion carried by a roll call vote  of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Dye, Scott, 

LaPointe, Jenema, White) and 1 abstaining (Zollinger) 

 

              4.     Resolution # R-2015-19 Clerk’s Salary 

                   Zollinger reassumed the gavel and Dye recused herself. 

 

Motion by Jenema, seconded by Aukerman to approve Resolution # 2015-19 that states the salary the 

Clerk shall be $37,008. Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Aukerman, Jenema, LaPointe, 

Scott,  White, Zollinger) and 1 abstaining (Dye). 

 

               5.      Resolution # R-2015-20 Treasurer’s Salary 

    Dye rejoined the Board and Jenema recused herself. 

 

Motion by Scott, seconded by White to approve Resolution # 2015-20 that states the salary of the  

Treasurer   shall be $25,159. Motion carried by a roll call vote of 6 in favor (Zollinger, Scott, White, 

Dye, LaPointe, Aukerman) and 1 abstaining (Jenema) 

 

                6.     Resolution # R-2015-21 Trustees’ Salaries 

 

                        Motion by Jenema, seconded by Dye to approve Resolution R-2015-21 that states the salaries of the 

                        Trustees shall be $6,000.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 2, 2015 Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 

                7.     Resolution # R-2015-22 Budget approval Fiscal year 2015/16 

 

                        Motion by Jenema, seconded by White to approve Resolution # R-2015-22 approving the 2015/16 

                        Budget as presented. Motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

                       

 

J. NEW BUSINESS: 

             1.        Annual Supervisor’s recommendations for Planning Commission and various committees 

 

                        Motion by Jenema, with modification to Larry Belcher’s term on the ZBA, to expire 07/15/2018 

                        instead of 07/15/16.  Seconded by White.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

              2.       2% Grant applications 

                        a.     Yuba Schools 

 

                                Motion by White, seconded by Scott to approve the 2% grant application of the Yuba School. 

                                Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

                        b.     Sayler Park Boat Launch 

                                Aukerman stated that the MDNR Waterways grant for $91,485 has been awarded to Acme 

                                Township. 

 

                                 Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema to approve the 2% grant application for Sayler Park  

                                 Boat  launch.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

                                                           

3    Resolution  # R-2015-23 Support of Left turn signal US31 S/M72 E 

 

                       Motion by Jenema, seconded by Scott to approve Resolution # R-2015-23 supporting a left turn 

                       signal from US 31 S to M 72E. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

4.    Resolutions for approval 

a.        Resolution R # 2015-24 Budget amendments various funds 

 

    Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Dye, to approve Resolution R-2015-24 for vaious fund 

    moves adjustments for the 2014/15 Township Budget. Motion carried by unanimous roll 

    call vote. 

 

b.        Resolution R # 2015-25  Budget amendments to support 2014/15 Audit 

 

    Motion by LaPointe, seconded by White to approve Resolution R-2015-25 for budget  

    amendments to support 2014/15 Audit. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

c.        Resolution R # 2015-26  SAD various moves adjustments 

     

    Motion by LaPointe, seconded by Dye, to approve Resolution R-2015-26 for SAD various 

    fund moves adjustments.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

 

5.     Set date for Parks strategic direction/Study session 

                        A Special Board meeting will be held, Thursday, June 11, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 



  DRAFT UNAPPROVED  

Acme Township Board of Trustees June 2, 2015 Page 4 of 4 
 

K.        OLD BUSINESS: 

           1.        County CPO contract agreement 

 

                         Motion by LaPointe , seconded by White to approve the CPO contract should the numbers not 

                         exceed 5%.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

              2.       Final review of new FOIA procedures 

 

                        Motion by Scott, seconded by LaPointe to approve adoption of Resolution R-2015-27 for 

                        Freedom of Information Act for Procedures and Guidelines.  Motion carried by unanimous 

                        roll call vote. 

 

                        Motion by Scott, seconded by Jenema to adopt Resolution R-2015-28 for Fees and Costs for 

                        Freedom of Information Act Responses.  Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote. 

 

                                                          

 PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

                          

              

           Adjourned at 9:30 pm       

 

 

 

  



















 

 

County Staff Report 
June 2015 

 
 

 
Strategic Goals 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Dispatch/911 (7) 

 Received board approval to move forward with NG911 technology upgrades. 

 

 Working with Region 7 Northern Michigan Mutual Aid Task Force to create streamlined 

notification processes. 

 

 Technical subcommittee continues to work toward a recommendation for a countywide 

radio communications system. 

 

 Working with Smart911 to incorporate Text to 911 functionality as well as facilities based 

data that can provide us vital information when responding to businesses. 

 
Commission on Aging (4, 7)    

 2014 Annual Report  The Commission on Aging 2014 Annual Report has been 
completed.  The Annual report will be sent out electronically, as well as posted on the 
Commission on Aging web site after June 10, 2015.   
 

 NMC Barbeque  On May 17, the Commission on Aging took part in the Northwestern 
Michigan College Barbeque by packaging and delivering barbeque meals to older adults 
who may not otherwise be able to enjoy the event.  Meals were packaged and delivered 
to 254 older adults using volunteers, including staff members, current and past board 
members, and persons from the public who kindly donated their time.   
 

 2015 Senior Expo  Staff attended and participated in the 2015 BASA Senior Expo, held 
May 20 at the Civic Center.  This year’s theme was Steppin’ Out.  Over 1,400 persons 
attended.  A set of hearing aids was won by a local older adult as part of the door prize 
give-aways. Our Baskets of Bounty program and Senior Center building fund were each 
the recipients of a $1,000 award as a result of the funds raised from the Senior Expo.  
For the first time, Business After Hours was held after the Expo.  Over 100 Chamber 
members attended and learned more about older adult services available in the 
community.  

 

1. Maintain financial strength and stability 
2. Strengthen and expand the County’s use of technology 
3. Address infrastructure needs 
4. Continue community engagement and access to information 
5. Ensure that County is viewed as a fair and equitable employer 
6. Expand the capabilities of the Board of Commissioners 
7. Advance the health and quality of life of the region 
8. Protect and preserve County’s water resources, forests, natural areas and scenic beauty 

 



 

 

2 County Staff Report  

Equalization (1) 
 Final State Equalization occurred May 26th after the May 11th Preliminary State 

Equalization.  The Final State Equalization order was issued having the same values as 

County Equalization with no factors applied. 

 Millage rollback fractions were calculated for the 26, out of 31 total, taxing jurisdictions 

that are considered “Primary” to Grand Traverse County.  Long Lake Township, 

Paradise Township, Whitewater Township, and The Village of Fife Lake received a 

millage rollback this year. 

 

 Equalization had an employee obtain his Michigan Certified Assessing Officer (MCAO) 

designation requiring 18 months of State Tax Commission education.  Good Job 

Warren!  Two vacant positions in the department were filled, and the new hires (Joel & 

Chris) are working out very well.   

 
Finance (1)    

 Updated economic and financial data that will be included in the Official Statement 
associated with the Road Commission Michigan Transportation Fund Bonds that will be 
issued to finance the special assessment road improvements in Acme Township. 
 

 Also updated the 2016 Budget Manual in order for departments to be able to submit their 
2016 Budget Requests based on established forms, procedures, and within the 
proposed timeline.  Budget Guidelines for 2016 were also presented and discussed with 
the Board to provide the basic framework and parameters for development of the initial 
Budget Recommendation for 2016. 

 
Health Department (7) 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE DIVISION 

 Accreditation - Finalized the Plan of Organization for review and approval by the Board 
of Commissioners and submission to the Michigan Department of Health and Human 
Services. 
 

 Northwest Michigan Water Safety Network - 39 rescue stations were installed 
at 33 area beaches in May.  A media event with a demonstration on how to use 
the life ring was held.  We are working on a process so that other entities may 
purchase a rescue station from GTCHD and install it so that all the stations in 
the area are universal and supplies may be purchased in bulk.  Several 
requests have already been made.  

 
 Immunization Task Force - A regional immunization task force was formed after the 

outbreaks in the fall of 2014.  The group is focused on education, advocacy and 
outreach in order to improve community immunization rates.  

 
 FOIA Changes - The health department’s FOIA officer and deputy FOIA officer have 

participated in the FOIA review led by Chris Forsyth on changes to the FOIA process, 
fees and creating a FOIA specific page on the new county website. 

 
 Ebola Monitoring Funding - Funding of $16,850 will be received for Ebola monitoring, 

which can be used from April 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. The required Ebola 
work plan was sent to the Office of Public Health Preparedness on May 29 by the 
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator.  

 



 

 

3 County Staff Report  

 Immunization Waiver Education Funding - Approximately $13,500 will be received from 
the State to be used towards the Immunization program for implementing waiver 
education.  At this time, the State has a plan for the funding to be available in August 
2015 and to be used through December 2015. 
 

 WIC/Family Planning Financial Site Review - State auditors were here for two days 
performing a WIC and Family Planning financial review.  The initial results during the exit 
meeting were positive. 

 
MEDICAL EXAMINER DIVISION 

 Child Death Review - Coordinating the first 3 county child death review team with 
Benzie, Grand Traverse and Leelanau County representatives.  The first joint meeting 
will take place in June. 

 
 Child Death Review Training - Dr. Fliss (Medical Examiner) and Jamie Warnes (Forensic 

Investigator) completed the state child death review training. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & ANIMAL CONTROL DIVISION 

 National Cherry Festival Planning - GTCHD staff met with the National Cherry Festival 
(NCF) Officials and food vendors for the 2015 NCF which will occur in early July. This is 
an annual meeting to discuss our expectations for insuring the safety of food operations 
at the Open Space and Festival Midway for this major summer festival. 
 

 Beach Monitors Stakeholders Meeting - The Beach Monitoring 
Stakeholders group held its monthly meeting for May at the National Parks 
Service (NPS) water lab in Empire, Michigan.  The group was able to tour 
the newly refurbished laboratory. 
 

 Animals in the Classroom - Two informative documents entitled “Animals in 
Schools and Daycare Settings” and “Managing Communicable Diseases in Schools” 
were distributed to 43 schools within Grand Traverse County.  On occasion, public 

health officials must deal with situations involving the 
investigation of illness associated with animals in the 
classroom, at petting zoos or other animal encounters on 
the playground.  The mailing was done in an attempt to be 
proactive in informing school administrators, teachers and 
custodians about common sense measures that can be 
implemented to reduce risks for both students and staff.   
 

 Updated Rabies Protocol Distribution - Updated rabies protocol 
were sent to 23 Grand Traverse area veterinary clinics.  The 
documents included: “Rabies Protocol for Mammals Which Have 
Bitten People or Pets” and “Protocol for Dogs, Cats, Ferrets, or 
Livestock Possibly Exposed to Rabies”.  The Documents are 
provided by the Michigan Department of Agriculture & Rural 
Development (MDARD) and the Michigan Department of 
Community Health (MDCH) to prevent the transmission of rabies 
to humans and animal due to animal bites and scratches.     
 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION 
 Emergency Management - Hosted a 2 day training for Public Safety agency members 

from around the region.  The federal Jurisdictional Threat and Hazard Identification Risk 



 

 

4 County Staff Report  

Assessment course was presented by Texas A&M Engineering Extension Service 
(TEEX). This is the 1st in a 4 class series that gives your local public safety leaders a 
Master Certificate in Critical Infrastructure Protection. More classes to follow in 
September and October.  The Emergency Management Coordinator and Health Officer 
participated along with 2 sheriff’s deputies from the county; Unified command was 
completed for the monitoring of the Bayshore Marathon.  Currently preparing for the 
unified command post at the Cherry Festival. 
 

 Public Health Preparedness - A comprehensive public health preparedness campaign is 
being developed with additional public health funding, which will be broadcast on six 
local radio stations.  Six commercials a day will touch on specific health preparedness 
capacities for 12 months. 

 
COMMUNITY HEALTH DIVISION 
DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PROGRAMS:   

 Communicable Disease Program - Martha, Jodi and Wendy presented on our 2014/2015 
pertussis outbreak and 2014 measles cases at the State Communicable Disease 
Conference.  Our Health Department received an award from the State for our 
successful efforts at managing two significant outbreaks at the same time and 
conducting Ebola travel monitoring.   

 
 Adolescent Clinics - Held Community Advisory Committee meetings for both Adolescent 

Health clinics with positive attendance at both.  Concluded evidence based education 
program for target population students to helps teens attain “safety” from substance 
abuse.  The utilization of mental health counseling services at both clinics has increased 
significantly with visits tripling at K Town Youth Care since last year.   

 
MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH PROGRAMS: 

 Maternal Infant Health Program - GTCHD is participating in a newly formed Northern 
Michigan Home Visiting Leadership Group aimed at collaboration and coordination of 
care throughout the region to provide for seamless transitions for children and families 
receiving home visiting services.  Additionally, we are participating in an Infant Mental 
Health Coordination workgroup aimed at improving access to services for our clients.  In 
April, Jodi Kelly and Dr. Collins participated in a 7 & 4 news story on maternal smoking, 
receiving positive feedback from the Northern Michigan Maternal Smoking workgroup for 
efforts to increase awareness and decrease rates in the north. 
 

 Healthy Futures - GTCHD, in collaboration with other Northern Michigan Public Health 
Alliance members, Munson, and the Great Start Collaborative, is exploring possible 
enhancements/changes to the program to include prenatal and postpartum home 
visiting.  Currently, the program offers only postpartum home visiting.  

 
 Children’s Special Health Care Services - With a current caseload of 279, GTCHD has 

been focusing efforts on meeting the care planning and transition planning needs of 
clients entering ages 14-18 to ready families for the potential independence of the 
CSHCS client.  We participated in the Celebration of the Young Child downtown 
Traverse City as outreach and distributed our annual client satisfaction surveys.   

 
 Immunizations - GTCHD immunization lead and director attended bi-annual 

immunization coordinators meeting in Lansing, which helps to keep our local health 
department on track for meeting program requirements.  Our immunization clinic is 
seeing an increase in immunization waiver appointments as a result of the TCAPs 



 

 

5 County Staff Report  

change in policy to require all 2015-2016 entering students to either be up-to-date with 
immunizations or have a certified waiver issued by the health department.  As a result, 
we have made some staffing adjustments and readied a second clinic room. Over the 
past 2 months, we collaborated with our vision and hearing department to staff 
kindergarten round ups. Our immunization lead nurse, Sheila Corner, presented at the 
Munson Nursing Conference, receiving positive feedback and raising awareness. 

 
 Head Start - GTCHD met with teachers and administrators for Head Start to plan for 

September 2015 clinics for new students.  As a team, we evaluated that having the 
clinics held at the health department and in the community of Kingsley, using the library 
facility and the adolescent health clinic facility worked much better than at the school 
locations.  

 
 WIC - GTCHD is gradually increasing our participation rates, particularly through our 

nutrition education classes, reaching 74% for the month of May.  We had several 
employees attend a 2 day WIC clerical training and all WIC and MIHP employees attend 
a 2 day annual WIC conference.  Our State WIC consultant conducted a site visit in 
preparation for our management evaluation visit in July  

 
 Hearing & Vision - GTCHD has made 456 referrals for vision care as a result of 

screenings thus far this year, surpassing the total referrals for all of 2014 already.  
 

 Blood Lead Testing - GTCHD sent several staff to the regional lead training hosted at 
the Grand Traverse County Health Department.  The team is re-evaluating our health 
department process for lead screening through the WIC program. 

 
Human Resources (5)  

 Currently recruiting for 15 positions County-wide with a total 50 requisitions posted 
County-wide for the year. The HR department is involved in all the stages of the hiring 
process for several departments.  
 

 Public Service Recognition Week was significant in our County. We had several County 
employees share “why they serve”.  The employees highlighted were Gregg Bird, 
Emergency Management Coordinator; Heidi Scheppe, Treasurer; Jamie Beck, Health 
Department; Charlie Hamlyn, Prosecuting Attorney’s Office; Sharon Neumann, 
Commission on Aging/Senior Center Network; and Wendy Trute, Health Department.   

 
 FMLA Policy was updated. 

 
 Wellness Team presented Lunch and Learns on savings and budgeting in May. 

 
 Letters to potential vendors and exhibitors have been sent out for the Wellness 

Luncheon. Nominations are also being sought for employees who have made healthy 
lifestyle changes or promote wellness at the office. Nominations are due June 26th in our 
office. 

 
 Nationwide Rep Chris Minkin presented a new aspect of services to members at a lunch 

and learn this month.  It’s called Nationwide Advantage.   
 

 The City and County held a joint blood drive in memory of Sgt. Dennis W. Finch over 2 
days.  The governmental building was busy with blood donors and we were over last 
year’s count with 28 donors and 5 first time donors.   



 

 

6 County Staff Report  

 
 Paula Sagala is contracted in the HR Department and helping with employee concerns.  

Thank you Paula! 
 
Information Technology (2) 

 Created five servers for the City in the virtual server environment. The servers will be 

used for fleet maintenance, work order management, GIS, and database serving. I.T. 

has been assisting the City with implementing each of the applications in the server 

environment. 

 The I.T. department, working with the City, has connected the Water Treatment Plant 

and Waste/Sewer Treatment Plant to the City/County network using TCL&P fiber. The 

new connections provide direct access to City servers at gigabit speeds as well as 

Internet access. 

 The I.T. department and Sarah Adams continue to work with departments on a new 

County web site. The final design has been selected. The vendor will start converting 

content from our existing web sites to the new site on June 12th. Training to update the 

new web site will be provided on July 21-23 with an anticipated go-live date of August 

20th. 

 I.T. is coordinating the upgrade of surveillance cameras at the Civic Center and the Hall 

of Justice. The Civic Center upgrade is being reviewed by the Parks and Recreation 

Commission. A quote will be received for the Hall of Justice upgrade, which will then be 

requested in the 2016 budget with the possibility of grant funding to supplement the cost. 

 The document imaging system that is utilized by the courts is being extended to the 

Michigan Department of Corrections (MDOC). The system will allow MDOC documents 

to be sent electronically to the courts for filing/processing and will also provide the 

MDOC with access to the court electronic case files. 

 77 new desktop phones were installed in County offices in April/May. 

MSUE (7, 8) 
 On May 15th, Safe Kids North Shore held a one day Child Passenger Safety 

Recertification course to recertify technicians whose certifications had expired due to 
temporary job assignments (ie: relocation, under cover assignments) etc.  Fifteen 
students attended coming from various parts of the state and various career 
backgrounds, including law enforcement, engineering, social services, military, 
transportation and surgery.  The class was funded through a grant that Safe Kids North 
Shore secured from the Office of Highway and Safety Planning.    

 
 Project FRESH will begin coupon distribution in June at the Grand Traverse County 

Health Department. MSU Extension provides nutrition education to participants in this 
program to help increase WIC families’ intake of fruits and vegetables while using their 
coupons at local farmers’ markets. 

 



 

 

7 County Staff Report  

Parks and Recreation (7) 
 Easling Pool  Summer hours for patrons and additional, special summer programs at 

Easling Pool begin the week of June 15.  Visit www.grandtraverse.org/parks for more 
information. 
 
The first of two summer sessions of American Red Cross Learn-to-Swim Lessons at 
Easling Pool kicks off the week of June 22, and registration is now open through June 
19.  Classes are filling up fast, so register on line, by phone, or in person today.  For 
more information, visit www.grandtraverse.org/parks. 
 
A Grand Traverse Summer Swim League, coached by competitive swimmer Erith 
Welch, LGI, WSI, and certified lifeguard, will meet this summer at Easling Pool.  The 
league offers a competitive swimming opportunity for individuals aged 10 to 18 and 
meets Monday through Thursday, 5 to 6 p.m., June 15 through July 26.  Cost is $50.  
Call or sign up at the Easling Pool Business Office, 231-922-4818. 
 
A high intensity, deep-water exercise class offering great cardio and stretching for adults 
who want to challenge themselves will be offered at Easling Pool on week nights at 6 
p.m.  Stayed tuned for more detailed information, to be posted online the week of June 8 
at www.grandtraverse.org/parks. 
 

 Power Island  Shuttle service to Power Island has resumed for the summer.  Schedule is 
Wednesdays, Saturdays, and Sundays, with pick-up at DNR Launch at Bowers Harbor 
at 10 a.m., returning to Bowers Harbor for drop-off at 4 p.m.  Cost is $100 for a County 
resident with up to six members of his/her party, and $300 for a nonresident with up to 
six members of his/her party.  Reservations are taken by the Grand Traverse County 
Parks and Recreation Department at 231-922-4818.  
 

 Twin Lakes Park  As a reminder, the swim area in North Twin Lake has been designated 
with buoys for the summer/fall.  Swimming outside of the designated swim area is not 
permitted under Grand Traverse County Ordinance Number 31:  Twin Lakes Park 
Ordinance.  Violation of the ordinance could result in a $100 fine, plus court costs.  This 
rule has been in effect for two years, but now is enforceable as a civil infraction, rather 
than a misdemeanor.  Park rangers are authorized to issue tickets.  For more 
information, visit www.grandtraverse.org/parks. 

 
Planning & Development (1, 3, 4, 7, 8) 

 Staff is assisting the Village of Kingsley in obtaining assessment funding from the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency. Assessment grants provide funding to inventory, 
characterize, assess, and conduct planning and community involvement related to 
brownfields sites. 
 

 A real estate agent has been identified for the Land Bank Authority in its efforts to assist 
Blair Township with the tax-foreclosed property at the corner of Rennie School Road and 
US-31. Marketing of the parcel is essential for development of the 70+ acre parcel and 
placing it back on the tax rolls. 

 
 Following a meeting between the Bayshore Corridor Strategy communities and the 

Michigan Department of Transportation, MDOT has requested TC-TALUS funding to 
perform an access/corridor management study of the highway corridor from Acme to 
Greilickville. Access management is the planning, design and implementation of land use 

http://www.grandtraverse.org/parks
http://www.grandtraverse.org/parks
http://www.grandtraverse.org/parks
www.grandtraverse.org/parks


 

 

8 County Staff Report  

and transportation tactics in an effort to maintain a safe flow of traffic while 
accommodating the access needs of adjacent development. 

 
Prosecuting Attorney (7) 

 Prosecution  As the County’s Chief Law Enforcement Officer, the Prosecuting Attorney is 
responsible for the prosecution of crimes including juvenile, misdemeanor and felony offenses, 
protection of abused and neglected children, and establishment of child support for needy 
children. For the month of May, we engaged in the following: 

o Authorized 204 misdemeanor warrants 
o Authorized 32 felony warrants 
o Authorized 32 juvenile petitions 
o Initiated 4 neglect/abuse case  
o Handled the following matters in Family Court: 

 8 new paternity/child support cases filed 
 Obtained 6 judgments of child support 
 6 mentally ill commitment hearings 

  
Civil Counsel  

 Litigation - We represent the County in civil actions filed in the Grand Traverse County District 
and Circuit Courts as well as the Federal District Courts. For the month of May, we represented 
the County in the following cases: 
 

o Grand Traverse County v. Kristi Brewer, et al.  In May, we filed 15 separate inmate 
reimbursement lawsuits seeking $31,258.90 in total.  As with the other lawsuits, we will 
seek to obtain multiple default judgments against those Defendants who fail to answer 
the complaints, and consent judgments for those Defendants who are willing to pay the 
outstanding debt. 

 
Resource Recovery (8)  

 The last day to use no-charge yard waste passes provided by the townships to residents of 
Garfield, Long Lake and East Bay is June 9. Passes will not be accepted at the Keystone 
Brush Site after this date. 
 
Passes are good for one trip and load of up to three yards of material and are valid for specific 
dates. Residents should contact their township to request a pass. 
 

 The next Household Hazardous Waste Collection is scheduled for Thursday, August 27th. 
Residents and small businesses can make an appointment starting in mid-August by calling 
the RecycleSmart hotline at 231-941-5555 or by making an online appointment at 
recyclesmart.info. 
 
Appointments are required and residents are encouraged to make an appointment at least 
one week prior to scheduled HHW events. 
 
For the safety of staff and the collection and disposal contractors, residents should ensure that 
all HHW material brought to an event be in sealed, non-leaking containers.  

 
Treasurer (1) 

 Converted to new Fifth Third Direct online platform.  We had a few hiccups with the first 
payroll processing on the new system but have worked through the issues and had an easier 
run the second payroll on the new system. 
 

http://www.recyclesmart.info/


 

 

9 County Staff Report  

 Started creating 2015 tax databases for each township with the numbers reported by county 
Equalization.  We will continue to update and maintain these databases throughout the year to 
balance and reconcile with the townships before their summer and winter tax bills are run. 

 
 Started working on 2014 Treasurer’s Report/Delinquent Tax Report to be presented to the 

board in June. 
 

 Interviewed for Chief Deputy Treasurer position.  Annette will be retiring June 12; her 
replacement David started June 1. 

 
 
 
 


















































	070715 Board meeting Approved minutes
	070715 Packet for website 063015
	070715 Board agenda
	Treasurer's report
	Clerk's Revenue Expenditure Report
	Clerk's Balance Sheet
	060815 PC minutes
	Metro Fire newsletter
	North Flight report
	VGT Final Stormwater agreement
	Henkel's report
	051915 Special Budget work session jbz (3)
	061115 Special Parks work session
	061115 Special work session on Parks
	061115 Public comments

	060215 Board meeting
	Clerk's Prepaid
	Clerk's Current Bills
	County report
	RFP Legal Services
	FOIA Resolution
	Acme Swer Update
	doc04419920150623134430
	doc04420020150623134448

	BS&A Resolution
	GIS update
	Proposed New Name
	Waterways Grant Agreement


